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REQUEST FOR QUOTATION
 

Proposal for Consulting Services for Market Study Development in Key Market Areas of Interest for Satellite Applications

Please respond by 17:00hrs 30th January 2017

RFQ-FY17-09 Market Reports


















1. SATELLITE APPLICATIONS CATAPULT

The Satellite Applications Catapult is an independent innovation and technology company, created to foster growth across the economy through the exploitation of space. We help organisations make use of and benefit from satellite technologies, and bring together multi-disciplinary teams to generate ideas and solutions in an open innovation environment.

2. PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

The purpose of this request is for the Satellite Applications Catapult to receive sufficient information from potential Suppliers interested in supplying the requirements and to allow an assessment to be made of their capacity and suitability to supply the reports required. 

[bookmark: _DV_M82]Please respond in the format presented. Responses should contain:
1.  Organisational information (Section A);
1.  Completion of the response requirements (Section B) with the Statement of Work (see Annex A); and,
1.  Provision of commercial and Pricing Information (Section C).
1.  Response to the evaluation criteria detailed in Section 9.

3. SPECIFICATION OF REQUIREMENTS 

The Satellite Applications Catapult is looking to update and enhancing a series of Market Briefings related to market opportunities for the UK Space Industry originally undertaken in 2013.

The Catapult aims to engage with a number of market consultants with insight and expertise in sectors considered to be of significant relevance to the fast growing space services and applications industry. 

The purpose of these reports is to identify market opportunities that the Space Community can develop which are not currently visible because of either regulatory, technical or cost etc, to identify substantial growth opportunities.

The topics for investigation have been identified, with some having overlapping services and end user communities. Please see Appendix A (Statement of Requirements). Vendors are free to select any number of reports for which they wish to be considered. 

An example of the questions which need to be addressed in each report are detailed within Appendix B (Scope and Questionnaire Guide).

The maximum price for each identified report should not exceed £5,500. Vendors should develop the report based upon in-house expertise and desk research. 

The Catapult would like to hear from organisations that believe they have the necessary skills to develop a market briefing(S) for the space community that will encompass identifying market dynamics and key trends, leading sector stakeholders and value chains as well as barriers to market development.

4. AWARD TERMS

The Award will be let on the basis of:

a. The acceptance of the Satellite Applications Catapults’ provided terms and conditions (see Annex C).  Any questions regarding terms and conditions should be made in writing before the closing date of the response. Please note terms and conditions will not be amended after the contract award has been made.
b. The evaluation criteria detailed in Section 9 of this invitation.

 
5. [bookmark: _Toc238467455]CLARIFICATION QUESTIONS

[bookmark: _GoBack]The Catapult will not enter into detailed private discussions regarding the goods or services.  Clarification questions about the procurement should be submitted through the procurement@sa.catapult.org.uk email address. All requests for clarification must contain the reference at the front of this document.  

The closing date for receipt of questions is 12:00hrs on Friday 20th January 2017. Answers will be issued to all vendors who have expressed an interest in a particular report. Questions of a confidential nature will not be issued generally if identified as such by the Vendor. 

Questions which relate to a specific report should be identified as such and the answer will be issued to those vendors which are interested in this topic. 

Answers to all received questions will be issued on 24th January 2017.



6. CONFIDENTIALITY

All information provided in this document shall remain confidential between the Supplier and the Satellite Applications Catapult.  The Satellite Applications Catapult will not share this information with any other organisations or Public Bodies without the permission of the Supplier.

7. [bookmark: _Toc266195505]DISCLAIMER

The Satellite Applications Catapult reserves the right to amend any information or any requirements contained in this documentation. Suppliers should form their own conclusions about the methods and resources needed to meet these requirements.

The documentation and the information contained within it are the property of the Satellite Applications Catapult; all rights, including intellectual property rights, are reserved. 

Suppliers may withdraw their responses at any time prior to accepting the notification of award by sending a notice of withdrawal to the Satellite Applications Catapult. 

The Satellite Applications Catapult shall observe all its obligations under the Data Protection Act 1998 and associated legislation, which arise in connection with this tender.

[bookmark: _Toc238467456]Any expenditure, work or effort undertaken by your Company prior to the award of a contract is a matter solely for your Company’s own commercial judgement.

8. TIMETABLE

[bookmark: _DV_M120]The indicative timetable is set out in the following table:

	Deadline for receipt of questions
	12:00hrs 20th Jan  2017 

	Issue of related answers
	24th Jan 2017

	Closing date for receipt of responses
	17:00hrs 30th Jan 2017

	Notified of award decision
	06th Feb 2017



IMPORTANT NOTE: No extensions to the deadline for responses will usually be granted with very limited exception to situations where a Bidder finds themselves seeking to request an extension due to reasonable extenuating circumstances, those circumstances being beyond the Bidder’s control and unforeseen to them.  

9. THE EVALUATION APPROACH

Suppliers are requested to complete the information requirement in Sections A, B & C and submit a brief proposal (no more than 4 sides of A4) for each report they wish to be considered, which addresses the criteria below. Proposals will be evaluated based on the most economically advantageous offer to meet requirements detailed in Annex A. 

For each report, the Vendors who are deemed most capable to deliver the requirement may be called by telephone to clarify the finer points of their approach. Following these calls, the panel of evaluators will determine the  highest overall evaluated score for each Market report and nominate a Preferred Vendor for contract award. All contracts will be in accordance with the Terms and Conditions issued in Appendix C of this document.

The Table below contains a list of all criteria to be addressed:  

	ASCQIR/V
	Max score
 available
	Criteria 

	Assurance of Supply
	30
	Tenderers should demonstrate proven experience in supplying the market reports they are bidding for.

Please provide two specific examples (within the bounds of Confidentiality) of a similar assignment or past customers who may be contacted for a brief phone call. 

	Service
	20
	Tenderers should outline how they intend to go about supplying the requested reports, and the sources from which they intend to draw their point of view. (Methodology)

Please provide a brief overview of the experience of those people being put forward to deliver the requested report, and their specific experience in the activity.

	Cost
	30
	The supplier, which submits the lowest price, will be awarded the maximum score for this criterion. Other Suppliers (higher) prices will be divided into the lowest price and multiplied by the maximum score available to achieve a proportionately lower score.

	Quality
	10
	What standards do you apply which ensure the quality of your finished product?

	Innovation
	10
	What is it about the reports being provided which demonstrate the Unique Selling Proposition which can be offered by the vendor?

	Total
	100
	





10.  RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS

Please use this document, including all the attachments to return by email to procurement@sa.catapult.org.uk by 17.00 on 30th January 2017. 

	
	SUPPLIER
	BUYER

	Company Name:-
	[bookmark: Text1]     
	Satellite Applications Catapult Ltd

	Contact Name:-
	[bookmark: Text2]     
	Lorraine Hoult

	Telephone Number:-
	     
	01235 567999

	Email Address:-
	[bookmark: Text6][bookmark: Text163]     @     
	procurement@sa.catapult.org.uk 

	Position within the Company
	
	Financial Accountant

	Persons authorised to sign on behalf of the Company
	
	Antonia Jenkinson – CFO/COO





SECTION A – SUPPLIER ORGANISATION INFORMATION
Please ensure that you complete the questions relevant to your organisation.
	A1
	Full name of the organisation submitting the quotation

	



	A2
	Please confirm the status of the Supplier to be considered:

	
	A response to this question is for the Catapult to understand the Supplier.

	A
	Your organisation is bidding to provide the services required itself 
	

	B
	Your organisation is bidding in the role of Prime Contractor and intends to use third parties to provide some services (If you tick yes go to question A3 and A4)
	

	C
	The Potential Provider is a consortium (If you tick yes go to question A3)
	



	A3
	If your answer to A2 was b or c, please indicate in the table all sub-contractors or members of the consortium which will be responsible for each element of the requirement.  

	
	If you have answered ‘yes’ to question b or c, please response to this question.  

	Element of Requirement
	Company / Organisation
	How much of the requirement will they directly deliver (%)

	
	
	            %

	
	
	            %



	A4
	Details about the organisation named in A1:

	A
	Company Registration Number
	

	B
	Date of Registration
	

	C
	Registered Address
	

	D
	Annual turnover
	

	E
	VAT Registration Number (if applicable)
	

	F
	Please select the legal status of the organisation applying 
	1
	a public limited company
	[bookmark: Check25]|_|

	
	
	2
	a limited company
	[bookmark: Check26]|_|

	
	
	3
	a sole trader
	[bookmark: Check27]|_|

	
	
	4
	a partnership
	[bookmark: Check28]|_|

	
	
	5
	a Limited Liability Partnership
	[bookmark: Check29]|_|

	
	
	6
	a consortium
	[bookmark: Check30]|_|

	G
	Please attached your most recent accounts
	


	A5
	Conflicts of Interest/Related Parties

	Is there any other work being undertaken or likely to be undertaken by your organisation (or consortium) which could give rise to a conflict of interest? 
If Yes please provide details below


	Is your organisation, or are any members of your organisation, related parties to any members of the Satellite Applications Catapult? (A related party could be a family member, relative, friend, prior business supplier or related corporation) 




SECURITY REQUIREMENTS
	A7
	Do you have a company representative who is responsible for security
	|_|   Yes
|_|   No

	A8
	Does your organisation operate an Information Security Management system certified to International, European or equivalent standard (e.g. BS EN ISO 27001) or is your company certified to Cyber Essentials Plus?
	|_|   Yes
|_|   No

	
A9
	If you have answered “Yes” to the above, please provide:
	Name and approval certificate Number
	

	
	
	Certificate Expiry Date
	

	A10
	Please self-certify that your organisation has an in-house policy for the management of information security that fully complies with current legislative requirements.
	|_|   Yes
|_|   No

	A11
	When was the last time an IT Health Check/penetration test was carried out on your company network?
	

	A12
	Please provide, as a separate appendix, a record of any security breaches (both cyber and physical) in the last two (2) years.
	|_|   Yes
|_|   No
|_|   n/a

	A13
	Please self-certify that your organisation has an in-house policy/plan for Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery
	|_|   Yes
|_|   No

	A14
	If you have answered “No” to the above question, please describe your arrangements to ensure business continuity and to enable disaster recovery, including scope, validation, risk treatment and leadership in these areas.
Guidance: You should demonstrate that your organisation keeps copies of documentation setting out your business continuity and disaster recovery procedures.  These should include the arrangements for business continuity and disaster recovery throughout your organisation.  They should set out how the organisation will carry out its policy with a clear indication of how the arrangements are communicated to the workforce.

	A15
	Has your organisation (or any member of your proposed consortium, if applicable) Directors or partner or any other person who has powers of representation, decision or control been convicted of any offence (if yes please provide details in separate annex)
	|_|   Yes
|_|   No
















SECTION B – RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS
This section seeks to understand how your organisation can meet the requirements of the User Requirement Specification 
	B1
	User Requirement Specification 

	Please confirm you have attached your organisations response to the Specification of Requirements (Annex A). 
	



[bookmark: _Toc238017682][bookmark: _Toc238017953]
	B2
	Indemnity and Liability Provision

	Please confirm that your organisation could provide these insurances:

	Professional Indemnity - £5m
	

	Employers Liability - £5m
	

	Public/Products Liability - £5m
	


NB: If you do not have these levels in place, please specify the levels of cover you have. 

SECTION C – COMMERCIAL AND PRICE INFORMATION
The following section outlines the commercial and price offer based on the User Requirement Specification. 
Prices submitted should be fully inclusive (Ex VAT) in GBP not subject to variation. Any costs introduced later will not be entertained. 

	C1
	Price Schedule

	Please enter, where applicable, your prices for the services listed in the table below.  Total cost of goods or services proposed to meet the requirement. For each report you wish to be considered for, you should submit a response to the evaluation criteria.

	A
	[Enter the number & name of the report to be provided]
	£

	B
	[Enter the  number & name of the report to be provided]
	£

	C
	[Enter the  number &name of the report to be provided]
	£



 
	C2
	Optional Extras

	Please outline if there are any additional options outlined in your quotation that were not identified in our original User Requirement Specification.



	[bookmark: _Toc238467467]UNDERTAKING



To be signed by an Officer of the Supplier’s Company in their own name on behalf of the Company.
I certify that the information provided is accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I accept the conditions and undertakings requested in the Request for Quotation. 
	Signed for and on behalf of the Company
SIGNATURE
	

	Name of person signing on behalf of the Company
PRINT
	

	Position/status in the Company
PRINT
	

	Company’s name and address
PRINT
	

	Date

	












Appendix A – Statement of Requirement
List of reports and date for final report submission 
CONSUMER SERVICES
1. Direct-to-Consumer TV
2. Seamless personal comms
3. Indoor navigation

PLATFORM
4. Unmanned Aircraft Systems Comms
5. Fixed Satellite broadband
6. High Altitude Platforms (HAPS and HALE)

MOBILE BROADBAND
7. Broadband to aircraft
8. Broadband to Vehicles
9. Broadband to trains
10. Road traffic management
11. Rail traffic management
12. Air traffic management

INSTITUTIONAL
13. Energy infrastructure monitoring
14. Secure satcom

PROTECTING THE PLANET
15. Climate services
16. Carbon monitoring and modelling
17. Environmental monitoring services
18. Persistent surveillance

ENABLING SPACE
19. Space Surveillance and Tracking
20. Space tourism
21. Power from space





Appendix B- Scope and questionnaire guide 
General Scope and Questionnaire Guide:
Theme: XX
Describe the scope of the Market Briefing

	General Space Technologies covered (Usually 1. Earth Observation. 2. Global Navigation Satellite System (eg. GPS) and 3. Satellite Communications (maybe broadband or narrow band depending on application)

Geography covered (UK; EU; USA; Africa Middle East and Asia) please state if report specifically omits a region (e.g. China etc)

Any key markets deliberately omitted (e.g. Defence or Security); 

Period the briefing covers (should be from 2016 to 2020 (near term) and then  to  2030 (longer term)




Describe the market opportunity (or product area) in some detail:
(This text may be used in the published IGS report) 
	



 
Who is the customer for this service? 
(This text may be used in the published IGS report) 
	
This section describes and illustrates the ultimate end user for the product or service. Reference to the customers understanding and current use of Space derived services would be helpful. Where a level of usage maturity is low, it would be good to understand the blockers, maybe they have had a poor experience with previous generations of solutions.



What is the proposition to the customer and end user?
(This text may be used in the published IGS report) 
	What would a customer be able to do with this “new product” that they can’t do now?
Same activity at lower cost; Faster; more efficient; enter new markets; have a “better” experience.






Explain what the alternatives are and why a customer would buy this in favour of the alternatives/competitors?
(This text may be used in the published IGS report) 

	· e.g Microwave telecoms in remote regions instead of sat comms.
· Use of Drones instead of satellite Earth Observation for small areas of coverage
· Use of optical sensors (Lidar) for positioning of autonomous cars instead of GPS…






What role would UK companies play in providing this product or service?
	· UK space companies include organisations that receive data from Earth Observation, Navigation or communication satellites and develop applications for science, government and Industry – services that have consumers as ultimate end users would be welcome
· UK space companies include in orbit equipment from large satellites, medium sized satellites and very small cube sats, the latter have a limited life measured in months.
· UK companies make instruments to be integrated on the satellite platform, specialist power sources and ground based control and data reception facilities










Revenue projections 
Estimate the likely revenue you foresee over the next few years:
	
	2016
	2017
	2020
	2030

	Opportunity 1.
	Current levels
	Scale of growth/decline
	Scale of growth/decline
	Scale of growth/decline

	Opportunity 2.
	
	
	
	

	Opportunity N..
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	



How were these figures were calculated?  (show evidence or provide the source of the data)
	Logic of revenue estimate, based on comparison with complimentary market, turnover of leading players, published reports etc..




Produce a SWOT analysis for the opportunities:
A general SWOT for a number of the leading opportunities – they may not necessarily be specific to EO/SatComms/ or GNSS etc.
	Earth Observation (Optical, Radar and other remote sensing if relevant)


	Strengths

	Strengths of the solution (internal to Space Sector)

	Weaknesses

	Weaknesses of the solution (internal Space Sector)

	Opportunities

	What are the market opportunities (external)

	Threats

	What are the biggest threats (external)



	Position Navigation Timing (e.g. GPS, Galileo etc.)


	Strengths

	Strengths of the solution (internal to Space Sector)

	Weaknesses

	Weaknesses of the solution (internal Space Sector)

	Opportunities

	What are the market opportunities (external)

	Threats

	What are the biggest threats (external)



	Satellite Communications (e.g. narrow band – IoT or Broadband - 5G etc)


	Strengths

	Strengths of the solution (internal to Space Sector)

	Weaknesses

	Weaknesses of the solution (internal Space Sector)

	Opportunities

	What are the market opportunities (external)

	Threats

	What are the biggest threats (external)


Actions/Enablers

What needs to be done to realise this growth and by whom?  
	Some examples ..
Technical development –  indoor positioning
Business Model – lower cost sat communications
Regulatory Changes – privacy issues, air traffic control for drones
Funding sources – seed fund from Government, Venture Capital engagement
Skills – inform academia of shortages
Manufacturing and R&D – ensure supply chain develops in the UK





Market Dynamics
Who are the key stakeholders and players in the main market sectors of interest to UK Space Community?Industry gorillas or fragmented market..?
UK based or global supply chain..?  


Market Trends
Is this a growing market, what are the main drivers, is the market sustainable?
Trends in the supply chain- 
Highly regulated or open - 





















Appendix C – Terms and Conditions of Purchase
Please see separate attachment
End of Document.
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